
A
G

EN
D

A
 

O
U

TSTA
N

D
IN

G
 

A
C

TIO
N

S
STR

A
TEG

IC
 

M
A

T
TER

S
C

A
SE R

EP
O

R
TS 

FR
O

M
 P

SC

 

 

 
 

 

MINUTES Meeting date: Tuesday 24 September 2024  

 
IN ATTENDANCE ONLINE  
Members: 

• Suzanne Vestri (Convener) 

• Ashleigh Dunn  

• Helen Donaldson 

• Lezley Stewart 

• Morag Ferguson 

Executive Team Members: 

• Sarah Nicholson (Office Manager) 
 
 

ITEM CONTENT ACTION 

STANDING ITEMS 

1.  APOLOGIES 
Apologies were received from Lorna Johnston, Executive Director and Richard Wilson, Case 
Manager. 
 
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
No declarations of interest were made. 
 

 
  

2.  MATTERS ARISING 
Members noted all matters arising from their last meeting, on 30 July 2024, were complete. 
 

 
 
 

CONSENT ITEMS 

3.  DRAFT MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
Members reviewed and approved the minute of the meeting on 30 July 2024.   
 

 
 

STRATEGIC MATTERS 

4.  PROMOTING THE ETHICAL STANDARDS FRAMEWORK AND UPDATE ON OUTREACH WORK 
Members noted the outreach work undertaken since the last meeting. Members noted, in 

particular, that: 

• The Executive Director and Case Manager presented on the Model Code to the NHS Board 

Secretaries Group on 6 August 2024. 

• The Executive Director and Ms Donaldson presented on the Councillors’ Code to elected 

members of Perth and Kinross Council on 2 September 2024.  

• The Executive Director, Ms Vestri and Ms Ferguson presented on the Councillors’ Code to 

elected members of South Ayrshire Council on 10 September 2024. 

 

Members noted that the Executive Director had been asked to present at the SOLAR conference 

in November (date to be confirmed) and to appear before the Scottish Government’s Local 

Government, Housing and Planning Committee on 19 November 2024.  

 

 



2 
 

5.  CONSULTATION ON PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE ETHICAL STANDARDS IN PUBLIC LIFE ETC. 
(SCOTLAND) ACT 2000 
Members noted that a consultation document outlining the proposed changes to: 

• The Ethical Standards in Public Life etc. (Scotland) Act 2000 (the 2000 Act); 

• The Public Bodies (Joint Working) (Integration Joint Boards) (Scotland) Order 2014; and 

• The Health Boards (Membership and Procedure) (Scotland) Amendment Regulations 

2016, 

identified jointly by the Executive Team and the Ethical Standards Commissioner (ESC), was 

published on 4 July 2024 (with information on it outlined in the Standards Update issued at the 

end of June). Stakeholders were asked to respond with their views on the proposals by 30 

August 2024.  

Members reviewed the responses received and the minor amendments made, and agreed with 

the ESC, in light of these. Members agreed the content of a joint letter, from the Standards 

Commission and ESC to Scottish Ministers inviting them to consider the proposals. Members 

asked the Executive Team to issue the letter and publish the final, agreed version of the 

proposals on the website. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive 
Team 

BUSINESS MATTERS 

6.  QUARTER 2 REVIEW OF BUSINESS PLAN 2024/25 
Members reviewed the progress made in quarter one and to date in quarter two, against the 
actions outlined in the Business Plan for 2024/25. Members were pleased to note the majority 
of tasks identified for quarter one had been completed or progressed. 
 

 
 

7.  REVIEW OF EXPENDITURE AGAINST BUDGET TO 31 AUGUST 2024  
Members noted the report on expenditure to 31 August 2024 against budget. Members noted 
that the Standards Commission based its annual budget submission on its staffing and 
associated costs, business plan activities and funding for a projected number of Hearings. As 
expenditure associated with Hearings depends on a variety of factors, some of which are wholly 
outwith the Standards Commission’s control, it was not possible to forecast the resources 
required with any degree of certainty.   
 
Members noted that there was a small underspend against budget in the year to 31 August 
2024, but it was expected that this would unwind over the next few months, as a number of 
Hearings had been just held or scheduled. 
 
Members noted that the revised budget for 2024/25 has now been confirmed in writing by 
Officeholder Services. 
 

 
 

8.  REVIEW OF PROGRESS AGAINST KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
Members reviewed performance in the first five months of the year against the agreed key 
performance indicators and percentage targets, as published on the Standards Commission’s 
website. A report on these would be included in the 2024/25 Annual Report. 
 
Members noted that there had been strong performance against the majority of targets.  
Members further noted that the annual review of the suitability of key performance indicators 
was scheduled to take place in January 2025. 
 

 
 

9.  REVIEW OF HEARINGS HELD AND FEEDBACK RECEIVED IN QUARTER TWO, AND DECISIONS IN 
OTHER JURISDICTIONS 
Members reviewed the Hearings held in quarter two, any feedback and recent decisions made 
by analogous organisations in Northern Ireland and Wales. Members identified various learning 
points and agreed the following actions: 

• That Panel should explain to each witness appearing at a Hearing why they have been 
called to give evidence. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

• That, in order to ensure Hearings are conducted as efficiently as possible, it be made clear 
to both the ESC and Respondent (or their representatives), before the Hearing, that as a 
Panel already has the ESC’s report and Respondent’s submissions, it will only wish to hear 
key points or additional arguments and that it does not need the majority of the report or 
all submissions to be read aloud or repeated in any detail (particularly not disputed).  

• That Panel Members take the opportunity, where appropriate, to ask questions that 
demonstrate awareness of counter-arguments or view, to show that they are not 
necessarily taking all the ESC’s submissions at face value or accepting his conclusions 
without challenge. This is particularly the case where Respondents are not present or 
represented. 

• The template ‘notification of Hearing’ correspondence be updated to include a note 
stating that the purpose of the Hearing is for the Standards Commission to determine 
whether there has been a breach of the Code. The correspondence should make it clear 
that it is for the Standards Commission’s Hearing Panel to make a decision on breach and, 
in doing so, it may reach a different conclusion to that of the ESC. 

• That the Hearing process (as outlined in the Hearing Rules) be amended so the Hearing 
Panels hear from all witnesses first (regardless of who has called them), before it invites 
both parties to make submissions. Members noted that, potentially, this could avoid some 
repetition and make the process feel more balanced, as it allow equal time for 
submissions, if required, and avoid the need for any summing up.  

• In cases where the factual basis of the complaint is in dispute and where numerous 
witnesses are to be called, the Panel should consider whether it is appropriate to adjourn 
its decision-making on sanction to a later date. While the Hearing Rules already allow for 
this (in terms of both the decisions on breach and sanction). Members noted this could be 
particularly helpful in cases where it was possible a lengthy suspension or disqualification 
could be imposed.  

• In order to avoid duplication, and also any perception that a Respondent, or their 
representative has been “rushed through” their submissions in mitigation, Panel Chairs 
should state clearly (where applicable) when a Panel has noted mitigatory factors already 
raised during evidence and submissions on breach. Members noted that doing so should 
avoid repetition of such evidence again at the mitigation stage and should also help to 
prevent any perception that such factors were not going to be taken into account when a 
decision on sanction was being made. 

• That Respondents (or their representatives) be asked specifically for comments on the 
potential sanction to be imposed if a breach was found, as well as for representations in 
respect of any mitigation. 

 
Members agreed that the Hearing Rules and template case related templates be revised 
accordingly. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Executive 
Team 
 

10.  SEPTEMBER 2024 STANDARDS UPDATE  
Members approved the Standards Update to be issued and published on 30 September 2024. 

Executive 
Team 
 

11.  PROGRAMME FOR MONITORING OFFICERS’ WORKSHOP ON 28 OCTOBER 2024 
Members agreed the programme for the Standards Commission’s annual workshop with 
Council Monitoring officers, due to be held on 28 October 2024. Members noted the agreed 
programme would be issued to attendees, along with the September Standards Update. 
 

 
Executive 
Team 
 

12.  MEMBERS’ SKILLS AUDIT 
Members noted they had met in August 2024 to complete an audit of their skills and 
experience, that could be used by the Parliamentary Corporate Body to inform its recruitment 
when the next Member vacancy arose. The Convener has shared the outcome of the audit with 
Officeholder Services. 
 
MEMBERS’ BUSINESS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 
 

The Convener provided Members with an update following her regular meetings with the 
Executive Director.  

• Members noted that the Executive Team were due to meet with a public relations agency 
on Thursday 26 September and would provide a further update thereafter. 

• The Human Resources Committee are to review and update the member annual appraisal 
documentation in time for this years’ appraisal process. 

• The Audit & Risk Committee are to review the papers and reports that are prepared by the 
Executive Team to ensure that Member needs are met and identify any changes required. 

• Members noted that they had been invited to a meeting with the SPCB on 28 November 
2024. 

 

 
Executive 
Team 
 
HR 
Committee 
 
Audit & 
Risk 
Committee 
 

CASES UPDATE 

13.  REPORTS FROM THE ESC & SECTION 14 LETTERS 
(a) LA/NL/3947: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report 
received from the ESC about a North Lanarkshire councillor. 
 
(b) LA/E/4004: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report received 
from the ESC about a City of Edinburgh councillor. 

 

(c) LA/SB/4030: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report 
received from the ESC about a Scottish Borders councillor. 

 

(d) LA/AB/3996: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report 
received from the ESC about an Argyll and Bute councillor. 

 

(e)  LA/NL/3921: Members noted that a ‘do neither’ decision had been made on a report 
received from the ESC about a North Lanarkshire councillor. 
 
(f) LA/NL/3978: Members noted that the ESC had sent a draft breach report to a North 
Lanarkshire Councillor under Section 14 of the Ethical Standards in Public Life etc. (Scotland) 
Act 2000. 

 

(g) LA/NL/3987: Members noted that the ESC had sent a draft breach report to a North 
Lanarkshire Councillor under Section 14 of the Ethical Standards in Public Life etc. (Scotland) 
Act 2000. 

 

(h) LA/Mi/4131: Members noted that the ESC had sent a draft breach report to a Midlothian 
Councillor under Section 14 of the Ethical Standards in Public Life etc. (Scotland) Act 2000. 
 

 

14.  CASES 
(a) LA/S/3867: Members noted that a Hearing was held on 7 August 2024 at the Council 
Chambers, Stirling. The Respondent was found to have breached the Councillors’ Code and was 
suspended. 
 
(b) LA/Fa/3929: Members noted that a Hearing was held online on 4 September 2024. The 

Respondent was found to have breached the Councillors’ Code and was suspended. 

 
(c) LA/EA/3904: Members noted that a Hearing was held online on 11 September 2024.  The 
Respondent was found to have breached the Councillors’ Code and was censured. 

 

(d) LA/H/3969: Members noted that a Hearing scheduled to take place on 8 October 2024 at 
the Council Headquarters, Inverness had been adjourned as the Standards Commission had 
directed the ESC to undertake further investigation. 

 

 



5 
 

(e) NPA/C/3831: Members noted that Cairngorms National Park Authority had confirmed that 
it had formally considered a decision the Standards Commission made at a Hearing held on 27 
May 2024. 

 

(f) LA/NL/3979: Members noted that a Hearing was scheduled to take place on 23 October 
2024 at the Sir John Wilson Town Hall, Airdrie. 
 

15.  INVESTIGATIONS EXCEEDING 3 MONTHS – INTERIM REPORTS 
(a) LA/E/3961: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that an 
investigation into a complaint about a City of Edinburgh Councillor had taken more than three 
months to investigate. 
 
(b) LA/AC/3968: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about an Aberdeen City Councillor had taken more than three 
months to investigate. 

 

(c) LA/AC/3994: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about an Aberdeen City Councillor had taken more than three 
months to investigate. 

 

(d) LA/Mi/4131: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about a Midlothian Councillor had taken more than three 
months to investigate. 

 

(e) LA/SL/3905: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about a South Lanarkshire Councillor had taken more than six 
months to investigate. 

 

(f) LA/H/3975: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about a Highland Councillor had taken more than three 
months to investigate. 

 

(g) NB/CC/3976: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about a member of the Crofting Commission had taken more 
than six months to investigate. 

 

(h) LA/NL/3987: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about a North Lanarkshire Councillor had taken more than six 
months to investigate. 

 

(i) LA/AB/3953: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about an Argyll and Bute Councillor had taken more than nine 
months to investigate. 

 

(j) LA/NL/3972: Members noted the contents of an interim report from the ESC advising that 
an investigation into a complaint about a North Lanarkshire Councillor had taken more than 
three months to investigate. 
 

 
 
 
 

16.  FEEDBACK INCLUDING ANY HEARINGS SURVEY RESPONSES 
(a) Members noted the positive feedback received from the NHS Board Secretaries Group on 
the Executive Director and Case Manager’s presentation on 6 August 2024. 
(b) Members noted the feedback from a Hearing Survey response received on 2 August 2024. 
(c) Members noted the feedback received from the Respondent’s representative following the 
Hearing on case LA/S/3867, held on 7 August 2024. 
 

 
 



6 
 

 

ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

17.  ANY EMERGING RISKS  
None identified. 
 
AGENDA ITEMS FOR NEXT SCS MEETING 
Members agreed to advise the Executive Director of any items to be included in the agenda for 
discuss at the next meeting. 
 
COMMISSIONER LANDSCAPE REPORT 
Members thanked the Executive Director for the summary provided on the Finance and Public 
Administration Committee’s Report on its Inquiry into Scotland’s Commissioner Landscape. 
 

 
 

18.  2024 DIARY DATES AND WORKPLAN 
Members noted the diary dates and ongoing workplan. Members noted that the meeting and 
training session schedule will be reviewed at their meeting in December. 
 
DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
Members noted that the next meeting of the Standards Commission was scheduled to take 
place online, at 10:00 on Monday, 4 November 2024.  
 

 
 
 


